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The Taylor-Glover-Vivian house, located several miles west of State Highway 33, or 
the Shakertown-Danville Road, is believed to have been built c. 1790 by Samuel Taylor. 
The stone house, with two early brick additions, is situated in a valley along the banks 
of the Shawnee Run Creek. Gently rolling hills, sowed in pastureland, rise around the 
house, seeming to shelter it.

The original portion of the handsome stone house consists of a three-bay, two-and- 
a-half-^story structure with exterior stone chimneys. The stone is roughly shaped field 
stone, laid in irregular courses. The front entrance, in the central bay, is rather 
simple, with an incised stcne block above. Centered above the keystone, is a circular 
stone with the initials MS. T." at the top and the date "1790" inscribed at the bottom. 
Tooled around the inside of the stone is the motto "Look to your laws rather than to 
your progenitors for your inheritance" (see photos 1 and 3).

The windows on the first floor have nine-over-six pane sash with keystone arches 
above, while the openings on the second floor have six-over-six pane sash. The wide 
wooden cornice, decorated with modillions, that extends across the front and back 6f 
the house, lies directly above the second~story windows. Wide rectangular louvered 
basement windows are placed at ground level below the first floor openings. Small 
lookout windows are located high in the gable end on the west on each side of the chimney. 
Immediately north of the chimney on the west end is a door, partially below ground 
level, with a jack arch above. The door originally connected the kitchen in the base­ 
ment to the springhouse by means of a tunnel built of stone and covered with earth 
(see photos 2 and 4).

js

Between 1811 and 1836 two brick wings were added to the stone house. On the east side 
of the main block a one-bay, two-and-a-half- story brick wing on a stone foundation 
with an exterior brick end chimney was built. A two-room, one-story brick ell, with 
an interior brick chimney between the two rooms^was added on the east side of the 
north wall of the stone house. The brick is laid in Flemish bond on the front of the 
east wing and common on the sides and in the north wing. The windows in the additions 
have nine-over-six-pane aash with jack arches above and stone sills below. The 
openings are framed by spaced reeded moldings and carved rosettes in the upper corner 
blocks. An unusual brick cornice, which is composed of a row of headers set at an 
angle, with a projecting course of stretchers below, and then another row of headers 
set diagonally opposite the top row, extends across the front and back of the east wing. 
This cornice is very similar to the one found on the early additions of Shawnee Springs,
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Set in a valley along the banks of Shawnee Run Creek, is the impressive stone house 
with an early brick addition, known as Bachelor's Barter. There is a great deal of 
controversy as to whether the house was built as Trigg's Station in 1780, by Colonel 
Stephen Trigg, an early settler who was killed in the Battle of Blue Licks (1782), or 
was bunt in 1790 by Samuel Taylor, another early settler involved in the formation of 
the State's government. Despite the ambiguous nature of its early history, the house 
is an excellent example of an early stone structure. The brick wing on the east side of 
the stone block is an early addition that has fine woodwork :.-. attributed to Mathew 
Lowery, a Harrodsburg cabinetmaker.

Colonel Stephen Trigg, a native of Virginia, who held several prominent government 
posts in that state, came to Kentucky in 1779 as a member of the Virginia Land 
Commission, which was formed to adjust conflicting land titles in the new territory. 
After completing his duties in this position Trigg decided to become a permanent resident 
of Kentucky. In 1780 he was selected to represent Kentucky in the Virginia legislature. 
Trigg was killed two years later in the disastrous Battle of Blue Licks (Whitsett, pp. 87-91).

In 1780 Trigg established a station and claimed approximately 4,000 acres of land in 
eastern Mercer County between Dix River and Harrodsburg. Richard Collins in his 
History of Kentucky (1874) describes the location of Trigg's Station: "In that year 
/T780i7he settled a station called Trigg's Station, or Viney Grove (and sometimes 
called Haggin's Station because after Trigg's death, John Haggin lived there) 4 miles 
N. E. of Harrodsburg, on Cane Run 4 miles from its mouth at Dick's River" (Vol. H, p. 732). 
The location is again described in Wilson's The First Land Court of Kentucky 1779-1780 (1923): 

"He /~Trigg7 fixed his home at what came to be known as Trigg's Station, otherwise called 
Viney Grove, 4 miles N. E. of Harrodsburg on Cane Run Creek" (p. 61).

The site of the stone house, sometimes called Trigg's Station, does not conform to this 
description. It is located on Shawnee Run Creek about seven miles northeast of
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Mercer County (listed on the National Register July 19, 1976), which is located 
five miles northeast of the Taylor-Glover-Vivian House (see photos 6 and 7).

Sometime in the late 1800s the front entrance in the stone portion was moved from the 
center bay to the adjoining bay on the east. A one-bay, one-story porch, supported on 
four stout square posts, framed the entrance. The windows on the first floor in the 
stone and brick sections were changed from nine-over-six to two-over-two pane sash 
(see photo 5). In the 1960s when the house was restored, the front entrance was moved 
to its original location and the porch removed. The original size panes of glass 
were also restored. A slight alteration was made to the house at this time when the 
dormer windows were added to the front and back of the stone block to allow light 
and air into the room created from the attic.

Evidently the original floor plan of the stone house was based on the hall- and-parlor 
plan, with the front entrance opening onto a large room with a partition off center, 
dividing the first floor into two. Both rooms have a fireplace in the end walls and 
an enclosed staircase was probably located in the larger room. During the 1960s 
restoration, the partition was removed, creating one large room with a fireplace at 
each end. There is no longer a staircase in this room.

A door, north of the fireplace, in the east wall of the stone section, leads into the 
east brick wing, which consists of one room upstairs and one room down. An enclosed 
staircase rising to the second floor is immediately to the right as one enters the room. 
A second door, located in the east bay of the north wall of the stone block opens onto 
the dining room and the kitchen beyond, which were added at the same time as the 
east wing. The original woodwork, composed of carved rosettes and reeded moldings 
around the doors and windows is attributed to Matthew Lowery, a skilled local 
craftsman, who worked in the Harrodsburg area between 1800 and 1840. (Another 
house in the area with similar woodwork is Clay Hill, Harrodsburg, Mercer County, 
forwarded to Washington July 15, 1976.) The mantel in the dining room and in the 
east wing are in the Federal style, with plain raised corner blocks and center panel 
supported by reeded pilasters (see photo 8).
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Before the north wing was added, the kitchen was located in the basement of the stone 
section. There was a large fireplace for cooking and a dumb^miter to raise the 
food from the kitchen directly to the dining room.

Located about 20 yards west of the house is a part~stone, part-log springhouse. 
Originally it was connected to the house by a tunnel that extended to the kitchen door 
in the basement (see photo 9). The springhouse is the only outbuilding that survives.
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Harrodsburg. The site indicated as Trigg's Station on John Filson's 1784 Map 
of Kentucky, is not located near a creek, but between Cane Run and Shawnee Run 
Creeks.

The confusion over the actual site of Trigg's Station and the builder of the stone house 
may have arisen because in December 1781, Trigg sold Captain Samuel Taylor 600 
acres of land along Shawnee Run, which included the plot where the house sits. It is 
likely that the 600 acres that Trigg sold to Taylor was only a small portion of his 
original 4,000 acres and that it did not include the station that he had just completed a 
year earlier. In fact in the deed transfer, it states that Taylor is to deliver the 
payment for the land to Trigg's house in Lincoln (which refers to Lincoln County) 
(Kentucky Court of Appeals, Deed Book P, p. 203, Frankfort, Kentucky). This seems 
to be a clear indication that the stone house was not Trigg's Station.

Samuel Taylor, a native of Cumberland County, Virginia, first came to Kentucky in 
1779 as an assistant surveyor to the same land commission to which Stephen Trigg 
belonged. During this time he acquired seven land warrants located throughout the 
central portion of the State that comprised more than 6,000 acres, including two 
950-aere tracts along Shawnee Run. In 1781, however, Taylor bought 600 additional 
acres along Shawnee Run from Stephen Trigg, which included the site of the present 
house. Evidently, shortly after this purchase, Taylor returned to Virginia and came 
back to Kentucky with his family in 1783 (Williams, pp. 3-4).

Taylor immediately took an active role in the early affairs of Harrodsburg and the 
Commonwealth. He was a delegate to the First and Second Constitutional Conventions 
held before 1786 in Danville, Kentucky (see the Constitution Square Historic District, 
Danville, Boyle County, listed on the National Register April 2, 1976), and in 1785 
when the town of Harrodsburg was established by the Virginia Assembly, Samuel 
Taylor was named as one of the trustees. Two years later he was named surveyor 
of Harrodsburg. In 1788-89, Taylor was elected to represent Mercer County in 
the Virginia Assembly, and he served again in 1792 when the Assembly decreed 
Kentucky's statehood. After Kentucky became a state, Taylor served three terms as 
a state representative, during the years between 1792 and 1798. As a representative, 
he served on a committee to draft the second state constitution which took effect in 
1800 (Williams, 1932).
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According to a biographical sketch of Taylor in Sneed's History of the Kentucky Penitentiary 
(1860), Taylor was one of the largest contractors in the construction of the first 
statehouse in Frankfort in 1792. In 1806, Samuel Taylor was appointed Keeper of the 
penitentiary and held that post until 1810.

Instead of returning to Shawnee Run after he retired as warden of the penitentiary, 
Taylor moved to 413 acres in Washington County which he had purchased in 1798.

After having purchased 600 acres of land along Shawnee Run from Stephen Trigg, 
there is strong evidence to indicate that Taylor built the stone house in 1790. Embedded 
in the front entrance is a circular stone which has the date 1790, the initials "S. T." 
and the motto "Look to your laws rather than to your progenitors for your inheritance," 
inscribed in it. (Some architects, who have examined this stone, believe that it was 
added after the house was completed. Even if this were true, it seems possible since 
Taylor owned land as early as 1781, that a portion of the house was constructed at an 
earlier date and the stone with the date was added when an addition was made or as 
an afterthought.)

In 1811 Samuel Taylor sold the house and 454 acres of land to his son-in-law, John 
Glover. Glover, a native of Lincoln County, married Fannie Taylor in January 
1808. In 1810 he was appointed Keeper of the penitentiary when Taylor resigned. He 
held this post until 1815. It was probably during Glover's ownership of the house 
that the brick wing was added to the stone portion to accommodate his growing family. 
In 1836 he sold the property to William B. Vivian and moved to St. Louis, Missouri, 
where he became a prominent lawyer.

William B. Vivian, born in 1801 in Clark County, Kentucky, relocated in Mercer County 
in 1836, when he purchased the Taylor house. In 1823, Vivian married Elizabeth 
Christy of Clark County. In an 1887 biography, William Vivian is described as "a 
farmer having 328 acres of land in a good state of cultivation" (Perrin, p. 1032). 
The farm was sold out of the Vivian family in 1900.
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Over the years the stone house has undergone several alterations, as well as 
an extensive restoration in the 1960s. The original portion is a two-and-a-half- 
story stone structure, built on the hall-and-parlor plan, which was popular in 
early stone and brick houses built by Kentucky's first settlers. Several unusual 
features of the original house were the dumbwaiter that connected the basement 
kitchen to the dining room and a stone tunnel covered with earth that ran from the 
kitchen to the springhouse which is located west of the house.

The brick wing on the east side of the stone block was believed to have been built 
between 1811 and 1836. The woodwork in this section has finely carved woodwork 
which appears to be the work of the skilled craftsman, Mathew Lowery. Lowery 
worked in and around Harrodsburg between 1800 and 1840, turning out many artistic 
and stylish mantels, presses, cupboards, and other items of interior trim. His 
work was of the Federal style, following the precedent of the Adams brothers in 
England, yet with a flare of individuality. (Some of the other houses in the Harrodsburg 
area with fine woodwork attributed to Lowery are Clay Hill, forwarded to Washington 
July 15, 1976, and Millwood (Brewer House), Mercer County, listed on the National 
Register July 6, 1976.)

In 1963 the property was purchased by James L. Cogar. Cogar, a native of Midway, 
Kentucky, is the former curator of Colonial Williamsburg. In 1963 he was selected 
as the executive director of Shakertown at Pleasant Hill, Kentucky (listed on the 
National Register February 1972). During Cogar's ownership, the house was restored 
by him, drawing on his thirty years of experience at Williamsburg. A few adaptations 
to meet contemporary needs, such as the addition of the dormers in the main block 
and the enclosed entrance in the north side of brick additio^ were made. In 1974 
Cogar deeded the house and 7-8 acres of land to Shakertown at Pleasant Hill, Kentucky, 
Inc.
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Acreage: 5 acres

Verbal Boundary Description:

The five acres around the house which have been nominated include 
the springhouse and creek on the west and the stone fence which 
encompasses the site on the north, east, and south. The 
location of the house on a creek in a valley, sheltered by a 
hill on the east, contributes to the aesthetic quality of the 
setting.
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Taylo r-Glover- Vivian House
Harrodsburg
Mercer County APR 1 3 1977
Kentucky

Map of Boyle and Mercer Counties, 
Kentucky. Philadelphia: D. G. 
Beers & Co., 1876. 
Map 2. Bachelor's Barter is 
indicated in red.


